
Appendix I of
RNTPC Paper No. A/YL-PH/1044

























申請理由  

根據城市規劃條例第 16 條作出規劃許可申請  

擬在新界元朗八鄉丈量約份第 111 約地段第 2827 號 S.B (部分)、2827 號 S.C(部分) 

擬議臨時私人停車場(只限私家車)(為期三年)及相關的填土工程 

 

➢ 申請地點的面積約為 335 平方米，根據錦田北分區計劃大綱草圖編號 S/YL-PH/11，

申請地點現時被規劃作「農業」地帶。 

 

➢ 本擬議發展為臨時性質，因此不會影響申請地點長遠待規劃意向。 

 

➢ 擬議申請的停車場(只限私家車)在「農業」地帶，城市規劃委員會曾批准相類似，申

請包括: A/YL-PH/1028 (2024 年 9 月 26 日獲批)。因此希望城市規劃委員會對本申

請作出相同的對待。 

 

➢ 申請地點因村民主要出入需以私家車作代步，公共交通工具站口較遠，隨著該區村

民人口越來越多，繁忙時間更加難以乘搭公共交通工具。亦沒有足夠車位消化村民

對停車位的需求。特設更多私家車停車位，方便本村人使用。 

 

➢ 申請地點會採用混凝土作平整物料，厚度不超過 0.03 米，申請期限結束後會將混凝

土打碎並運走，已使用混凝土平整的範圍不會再進行平整工程。 

 

➢ 擬議用途的營業時間為星期一至星期日包括公眾假期上午九時至下午六時。 

 

➢ 申請場地不會對外開放，亦不准許重型貨車進入場地。 

 

➢ 場地足夠安排私家車進出場地。車輛機動空間直徑為 10 米。 

 

➢ 根據以上各點，誠意懇求城市規劃委員會寬大批准新界元朗八鄉丈量約份第 111 約

地段第第 2827 號 S.B (部分)、2827 號 S.C(部份)擬議臨時私人停車場(只限私家

車)(為期三年)及相關的填土工程。 











 

在錦田公路轉入進入橫台山，是路線 608小巴日常接戴村民的路線。 

 

GOOGLE有路線可見直達申請地點亦可見在碧瑤石剛苗圃鄰近。証明有車路可

到。 

 

這裡就是申請地點的附近圖 



出入車輛流量 

時間和進入車輛次數如下: 

7:00至 9:00  估計約 6輛車出入申請地點， 0車輛停泊。 
9:00 至 18:00 估計約 1-2輛車出入申請地點，1-2車輛停泊。 
18:00 至 20:00 估計約 1-2輛車出入申請地點，3-4車輛停泊。 
20:00 至 07:00 估計約 0-1輛車出入申請地點，5-6車輛停泊 

主要因為受眾為上班一族，主要出入為早上 7-9時，下班時

間 6-8時。其餘時間預計出入都是最多 1-2架車，不會對周

遭做成交通問題。 

不提供計時停車位，提供月租停車位，目標客戶為橫台山

永寧里有泊車需要的人，顧客皆是在附近生活和工作的人

車輛數目是固定 6架，2個停車位為電車泊位，4個停車位

為普通泊位。而實際車輛出入次數會更少。 開放式停車場

CCTV監察，開放時間星期一至星期日，包括公眾假期。  
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From:
Sent: 2025-02-24星期一 12:16:27
To:
Subject: PH/1044

致李小姐

回覆有關問題如下

(1)因為村屋地區電力供應不足問題，暫時希望先提供 2個充電車位作為測試，在確保穩定性後
會嘗試擴大充電車位，幫助更多村民。

(2)(3)地政署所提及的構築物已經清拆，當通過規劃署申請後向地政署申請 STW/STT。
之後亦只會搭建臨時性的構築物。不會造成任何不可復完的影響。

(4)營業時間為星期一至星期日 (包括公眾假期)早上八時至下午八時，服務對象為橫台山散村的
村民。步行至申請地點最快只需 4分鐘。

(5)填土工程在當通過規劃署申請後進行，厚度為 0.03m。填土後高度為+35.3mpd。
不會造成任何不可復完的影響。

(6)場上的樹木會保留，不會對鄰近的樹木造成破壞及損壞。

Best Regards
sunny
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Similar Applications within the “Agriculture” Zone
in the Vicinity of the Site in the Past Five Years

Approved Applications

Application No. Proposed Uses/Developments
Date of

Consideration
(RNTPC)

1. A/YL-PH/976 Proposed Temporary Public Vehicle Park
(Excluding Container Vehicle)

for a Period of 3 Years and Filling of Land

8.12.2023

2. A/YL-PH/1028 Proposed Temporary Private Vehicle Park
(Private Cars Only) for a Period of 3 Years

and Associated Filling of Land

4.10.2024
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Government Bureau/Departments’ General Comments

1. Electric Vehicle Charging

Comments of the Secretary for Environment and Ecology:

� no adverse comment from electric vehicle charging point of view;

� to echo with the latest version of the Chapter 8 of the Hong Kong Planning Standards
and Guidelines (HKPSG) about electric vehicle (EV) charging facilities and to support
the Government’s policies in promoting the wider adoption of EVs, the applicant is
suggested to comply with the relevant requirement of the HKPSG, i.e. EV chargers with
output power of not less than 7kW (i.e. medium chargers) should be installed in all
parking spaces for private cars, light goods vehicles and motorcycles of the application
site (the Site); and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

2. Traffic

Comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways Department
(HyD):

� no in-principle objection to the application from highways maintenance perspective;
and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

3. Environment

Comments of the Director of Environmental Protection:

� no objection to the application from environmental planning perspective and provision
of EV charging facilities perspective;

� no substantiated environmental complaint concerning the Site received in the past three
years; and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

4. Drainage

Comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services Department:

� no objection to the application from public drainage point of view;

� should the application be approved, approval conditions requiring the submission of a
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revised drainage proposal, and implementation and maintenance of the drainage
proposal for the development should be included in the planning permission; and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

5. Fire Safety

Comments of the Director of Fire Services:

� no in-principle objection to the application subject to fire service installations being
provided to the satisfaction of his department; and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

6. Landscape Aspect

Comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning Department:

� no adverse comment on the application from landscape planning perspective;

� with reference to the aerial photo of October 2023, the Site is located in a miscellaneous
rural fringe landscape character comprising of village houses, temporary structures,
open storages, vacant lands and scattered tree groups, and a temporary structure and
cars parking were observed within the Site.  With reference to the site photos taken in
January 2025, the Site has been cleared with a temporary structure at the north and a
few existing trees.  The proposed use is considered not incompatible with the landscape
setting in the proximity;

� according to the site visit conducted on 21.1.2025, a few self-grown trees of
common/undesirable species in small size and fair condition are observed near the east
and the west fencings within the Site.  Significant adverse landscape impact within the
Site from the proposed use is not anticipated; and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.

7. Building Matters

Comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings Department:

� no objection to the application; and

� advisory comments are at Appendix IV.
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8. District Office’s Comments

Comments of the District Officer (Yuen Long), Home Affairs Department:

� no particular comment on the application and no comment received from the locals
upon close of consultation.

9. Other Departments

The following government departments have no objection to/no adverse comment/no
comment on the application and their advisory comments, if any, are in Appendix IV:

� Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department;
� Chief Engineer/Railway Development 1-1, HyD; and
� Project Manager (West), Civil Engineering and Development Department.



Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) to resolve any land issues relating to the proposed use with the concerned owner(s) of the
application site (the Site);

(b) failure to reinstate the Site as required under the relevant approval condition upon expiry
of the planning permission might constitute an unauthorized development under the Town
Planning Ordinance and be subject to enforcement and prosecution actions;

(c) to note the comments of the Secretary for Environment and Ecology that the Government
announced the Green Transformation Roadmap of Public buses and Taxis in December
2024 and will provide support to realise the target of introducing about 3,000 electric taxis
by end-2027.  A comprehensive fast charging network is needed to effectively support
the operations of electric taxis and achieve the aforesaid target.  In this connection, the
applicant is recommended to consider installing some fast chargers with an output power
of 100kW or higher at the Site and opening up a certain number of charging spaces for
electric commercial vehicles for use, e.g. electric taxis and electric light goods vehicles;

(d) to note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, Lands Department
(LandsD) that:

(i) there is/are unauthorized structure(s) on both private lot(s) which is/are subject to
lease enforcement actions according to case priority.  The lot owner(s) should
rectify/regularise the lease breaches as demanded by LandsD; and

(ii) the lot owner(s) shall apply to this office for a Short Term Waiver (STW) to permit
the structure(s) erected within the said private lot(s).  The application(s) for STW
will be considered by the Government in its capacity as a landlord and there is no
guarantee that they will be approved.  The STW, if approved, will be subject to
such terms and conditions including the payment of waiver fee/rent and
administrative fee as considered appropriate by LandsD.  Besides, given the
proposed use in temporary in nature, only erection of temporary structure(s) will be
considered;

(e) to note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport that the Site is connected to the
public road network via a section of a local access road which is not managed by the
Transport Department (TD).  The land status of the local access road should be checked
with LandsD.  Moreover, the management and maintenance responsibilities of the local
access road should be clarified with the relevant lands and maintenance authorities
accordingly.  Sufficient manoeuvring space shall be provided within the Site.  No
vehicle is allowed to queue back to or reverse onto/from public road at any time during
the planning approval period;

(f) to note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (HyD) that:

(i) the proposed access arrangement of the Site should be commented and approved
by TD;

(ii) HyD is not responsible for the maintenance of any access connecting the Site and

Appendix IV of
RNTPC Paper No. A/YL-PH/1044



- 2 -

Kam Tin Road; and

(iii) adequate drainage measures should be provided to prevent surface water running
from the Site to nearby public road and drains;

(g) to note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection that the applicant shall:

(i) follow the revised “Code of Practice on Handling the Environmental Aspects of
Temporary Uses and Open Storage Sites” issued by the Environmental Protection
Department to minimise any potential environmental nuisance;

(ii) follow the relevant guidelines and requirements in relevant Professional Persons
Environmental Consultative Committee Practice Notes (ProPECC PNs), in
particular the ProPECC PN 1/23 “Drainage Plans subject to Comment by the
Environmental Protection Department”;

(iii) provide adequate supporting infrastructure/facilities for proper collection,
treatment and disposal of waste/wastewater generated from the applied use; and

(iv) meet the statutory requirements under relevant environmental legislation;

(h) to note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Mainland North, Drainage Services
Department (DSD):

(i) the DSD’s Stormwater Drainage Manual and its corrigenda for preparation of the
drainage proposal should be referred;

(ii) as land filling works will be carried out under the application, the applicant is
advised to ensure that the overland flow from the adjacent lands should not be
affected;

(iii) the proposed drainage facilities, including gradients, cover level (C.L.), invert level
(I.L.), ground level (G.L.) and the dimension details etc., should be shown on the
drainage plan;

(iv) the applicant is advised to demonstrate with hydraulic calculations that all
proposed/existing drainage facilities are adequate to collect, convey and discharge
the surface runoff accrued on the Site and to intercept the overland flow from the
adjacent lands;

(v) the full alignment of the discharge path from the Site all the way down to the
ultimate discharge point (e.g. a well-established stream course/public drainage
system) should be clearly indicated;

(vi) the connection details at discharge point should be shown and all C.L., I.L., G.L.
and catchpit/watercourse bottom level should be indicated in the drawing;

(vii) the calculation to demonstrate the downstream drainage system receiving the
discharge from the development has adequate spare capacity to accommodate the
runoff is required;
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(viii) colour photos to indicate the current conditions of the existing drainage facilities
should be included in the submission, and the photos taken locations and angels
should be shown on the layout plan;

(ix) where walls or hoarding are erected of laid along the site boundary, adequate
opening should be provided to intercept the existing overland flow passing through
the Site;

(x) cross section showing the existing and proposed ground levels of the Site with
respect to the adjacent areas should be given;

(xi) standard details should be provided to indicate the sectional details of the proposed
u-channel and the catchpit/sand trap; and

(xii) the applicant shall resolve any conflict/disagreement with relevant lot owners(s)
and seek LandsD’s permission for laying new drains/channels and/or modifying
/upgrading existing ones in other private lots or on Government land outside the
Site; and

(i) to note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) that:

(i) the total floor area of each structure shall be clearly stated on plan; and any carpark
providing electric vehicle (EV) charging facilities should include the provision of
Emergency Fireman’s switch for which the requirements are stipulated at the Fire
Services Department Circular Letter No. 4/2020; and

(ii) if the proposed structures are required to comply with the Buildings Ordinance (BO)
(Cap. 123), detailed fire service requirements will be formulated upon receipt of
formal submission of general building plans;

(j) to note the comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning
Department that approval of the application does not imply approval of tree works, if any,
such  as pruning, transplanting and felling.  Application for any tree works should be
submitted direct to relevant authority(ies) for approval;

(k) to note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department (BD) that:

(i) it is noted that one structure and associated filling of land is proposed in the current
application.  Before any new building works (including containers/open sheds as
temporary buildings, demolition and land filling, etc.) are to be carried out on the
Site, prior approval and consent of the Building Authority (BA) should be obtained,
otherwise they are unauthorized building works (UBW) under the BO.  An
Authorized Person should be appointed as the coordinator for the proposed building
works in accordance with the BO;

(ii) the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
emergency vehicular access in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the
Building (Planning) Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;
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(iii) the Site does not abut on a specified street of not less than 4.5m wide and its
permitted development intensity shall be determined under Regulation 19(3) of the
B(P)R at building plan submission stage;

(iv) if the existing structure is erected on leased land without the approval of the BA,
they are UBW under the BO and should not be designated for any proposed use
under the current application;

(v) for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by BD to effect
their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement policy against UBW
as and when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval should not be
construed as an acceptance of any existing building works or UBW on the Site
under the BO;

(vi) any temporary shelters or converted containers for office, storage, washroom or
other uses are considered as temporary buildings are subject to the control of Part
VII of the B(P)R; and

(vii) detailed checking under the BO will be carried out at the building plan submission
stage.
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